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Indiependent AUCiiors Report

To the Members of Ascent Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Ascent Hotels Private Limited (the "Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matter(s}

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinien thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

See Note 24 to financial statemenis

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
The Company is principally engaged in the | Our audit procedures included:
business of owning hotels. Its revenue
comprises hotel revenug (including room
revenue, food and beverage revenue and
revenue from recreation and other services)
and space rental revenue. * Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies are consistent with the
The accounting policies for different revenue |

* Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the key controls of the
revenue recognition process.

Registerad QOfice:
BSRECo (ap hip Airm wilh Raglsiration Mo BAG1223) comvanted into B S R & Co. LLP (a 14th Flaor, Cendral B Wing and North C Wing, Nasca IT Park 4, Nasco
Limitad Ligkdity P hip with LLP Registralion No. AAB-8181) wilh affect from October 14, 2013 Canter, press High gaun (East), Mumbal - 400063
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Ascent Hotels Private Limited

streams are set out in Note 211 fo the applicable accounting standards.

standalone financial statements. *  Using statistical sampling basis, tested the

revenue transactions recorded during the year
(including year-end cut off testing) with the
underlying documents such as invoices, bank
collections and other relevant documents, as

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the
Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to
achieve targets and earnings expectations.

applicable.
Considering the above, we have identified + Tested the journal entries relating to revenue
revenue recognition as a key audit matter. recognised during the year based on specified
risk-based criteria, to identify unusual or
iregular items.

+ Evaluated the adequacy of disclosures relating
to the revenue recognition made in the
standalone financial statements in accordance
with the applicable accounting standards.

Management’s and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This respensibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; seiection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report {Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errer, as fraud may
invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty

‘exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repoit to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in interal control
that we identify during our audit. '

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the cument period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the following:

T the back-up of accounting softwares used for maintaining general ledger, procure to pay
records, revenue records and food & beverage revenue records which forms part of the
‘books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode’ have not been
kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis; and

= for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B({f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

8
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Independent Auditor's Report {Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinicn, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors on 1 April 2024/ 17 April
2024/ 18 April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewkh
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b} and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 43(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 43(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person{s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities {"Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iii} Based on the audit procedures perfonmed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii} above,
contain any rmaterial misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned below,
the Company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of account which have a
feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

In the absence of sufficient and appropriate reporting on compliance with the audit trail
requirements in the respective independent auditor's reports of service organisations available
%/ Page 4 of 12
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

for part of the year and in the absence of the independent auditor's reports of service
organisations for the balance period, for accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of
account relating to food and beverage revenue and payroll process at the hotel level, which are
operated by third-party software service providers, we are unable to comment whether audit trail
feature for the said softwares was enabled and operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions, recorded in the respective softwares.

ii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database levei to log
any direct data changes for the accounting softwares used for maintaining the books of account
relating to revenue process, general ledger and procure to pay process at the hotel level.

iii. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting software
used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger.

iv. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application level for
the accounting software used for maintaining the books of account relating to general ledger and
procure to pay process at the hotel level for the period from 1 April 2023 to 19 May 2023.

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for the
respective accounting softwares, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 187(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 187(16} of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 29 May 2024 ICA| UDIN:24509822BKHRFB7539
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i} (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i} (b}

(c)

{d)

{e)

(ii} ()

(b)

(i)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in a period of three years, In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year ended 31 March 2023. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or Intangible Assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our apinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According o the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of sanction letter of such limits, there is no requirement
on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year
ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii){f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(vii) (@)

(b}

(viii)

() (a)

rendered by the company. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year ended 31 March 2024 since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Value added
tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, or Cess or other statutory dues
have been generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities,
though there have been slight delays in few cases of Employees' State Insurance. Further in
respect of tax deducted at source and interest on Goods and Services Tax, the Company has
been irregular in depositing the sum due throughout the year and the amount involved is INR
48.36 millions and INR 1.56 millions respectively,

As informed to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Value added tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty
of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of the | Amount Period to Due Date of

statute dues {INR in which the | date payme
millions} amount nt

relates

The Employees’ Provident fund 0.31 March 15 April Not yet

Provident Funds {Additional 2019 19 paid

And Miscellaneous | liability due to

Provisions Act, Supreme Court

1952 Judgement)

Central Goods and | Interest liability 1.05 July 2017 Various Not yet

Services Tax Act, on GST to August- | dates paid

2017 and State reversal 22

Goods and

Services Tax Act,

2017

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax
('GST", Value Added Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or
other statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year ended 31 March 2024,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
Page 7 of 12
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

(b}

(©

{d)

(e)

0

(x) (a)

b

(xi} (@)

(b}

()

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv} (a)

b

borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

As at 31 March 2024, the Company also has interest free loan having nominal amount of INR
4,106.46 millions from the holding company, repayable at the option of the Company and
accordingly classified as "Other equity”. As this foan is repayable at the option of the Company,
there has been no default in repayment thereof,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that the
company has used funds raised on short term basis aggregating to INR 253.80 millions for long-
term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024 ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f} is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year ended 31 March
2024. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12} of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicabie.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business,

The internal audit of the Company for the period under audit is currently under progress. Hence,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)}

(xv)

(xvi) ()

(b}

(c)

(d)

{xvii)

{xviii)

{xix)

(09

the internal audit reports could not be considered by us.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c} of the Crder is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of INR 138.95 million in the current financial year and
INR 353.26 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year ended 31 March 2024.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3{xx)(a} and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o
W g “
S%\.;ta Kumar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 29 May 2024 ICAl UDIN:24509822BKHRFB7539
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ascent Hotels
Private Limited {“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note") and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion™ section
of our report below on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March
2024,

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2024 financial statements of the Company,
and the material weakness does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weaknesses has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s intemal controls with
referencs to financial statements as at 31 March 2024:

The Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated Information Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company’s Opera application software were not operating effectively as at 31 March
2024. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenue from operations in the
Company's financial statements.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effactively for ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

4%

—

—
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain zudit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit svidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of

o
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Ascent Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

g

‘Shweta Kumar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 29 May 2024 ICA! UDIN:24509822BKHRFB7539
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US3101 MH2O00SPTC 154475

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(Al amournis in Rupeex milfions, wnless otherwise siated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Broperty, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other [ntangible assets
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Deferred lax assets (net}
Other tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
[nventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
(Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balznces other 1han cash and cash equivalents above
Other financial assets
Other current assels
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities
Mon-current liabilites
Financial liabilities
Bomowings
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Total non- current liabilities

Carrent liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bommowings
Trade payables

- total outstanding Jues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Other current labilitiss
Provisions
Total current lizbilities

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The aotes from Note 1 to Note 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even dale attached

for BSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 10124 8W/W- 100022

eta Kumar
Pariner
hembership Mo 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date:

Note

.

o= R

10
1A
1B

12

13

14
L5

16
17
18

19
20

21
22
23

DHN: 06813081

Place: (urgram

Asat
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

2,746.77 2,896.02
66.88 64.00
1.31 1.17
77.56 23.67
2248 2285
14.42 0.10
2,920.42 3,007.81
10.92 9.12
75.80 52.88
46.44 68.84
- 50.74
2892 7.58
2846 2334
190.54 212.50
3,119.96 3,220.31
1,278.01 1,278.01
(101.88) (3,561.68)
1,176.13 (2,283.67)
1,36323 4,397.31
4.06 3.36
119.16 130.00
1,486.45 4,530.67
1275 336.13
28.25 19.48
32637 204.08
20.73 326.63
66.47 3470
2.81 2.29
457.38 973,31
1,943.83 5,503.98
3,119.96 322031

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of /
Ascent Hotels Private Limited

ya Chalravarty
DIN: 08539291

Place: Gurugram

Mikita Bhura
Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS35054

Place: Gurugram
Date;



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN Us3101MH2005PTC154475

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[ncome
Revenue from operations 24 1,184.96 941.25
Other income 25 728 10.02
Total income 1,192.24 951.27
Expenses
Cost of materiais consumed 26 139.31 95.00
Employee benefits expense 27 151,55 14325
Other expenses 30 607.24 44137
$98.10 679,62
Earnings before finance cost, depreciation, amortisation and tax 294.14 271,65
Finance costs 28 44994 616.39
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 175.38 177.57
625.32 793.96

Loss before tax (331.18) (522.31)
Tax expense 7

Current tax - -

Deferred tax -
Loss for the year (331.18) (522.31)
Other comprehensive loss
Htems that will not be reclassified ro prafit or loss
- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit obligations 27 (0.23) (0.22)
- Income tax relating to items mentioned above - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 0.25 (0.22}
Total comprehensive loss for the year {331.41) (522.53)
Loss per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each): 3
Basic (INR) (2.59) (4.09)
Diluted (INR) (2.59) (4.09)

The notes from Note 1 to Note 43 form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP
Chariered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-[00022

hweta Kumar

Ascent Hotels Private Limited

Parmer Director Director
Membership No.: 509822 DIN: 06813081 DIN: 08539291
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: Date: Date:

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Tarya Chakravarty

Nikita Bhura
Company Secretary
Membership No.: ACS35054

Place; Gurugram



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USST101MH2005PTC154475

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts in Rupees milfions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Liabilities / provisions no longer required wririen back
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss altowance for trade receivables
Finance costs
Intgrest income
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Operating cash Nows before working capital changes
Increase in inventories
[ncrease in trade receivables
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets
[ncrease in other assets
[ncrease in trade payables
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
[rerease in other financial liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes refunded/ {paid) {including interesi} - net
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash Mows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets (inciuding capital work-in-progress)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Bank deposits matured
Bank deposits made
[nterest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows lrom financing activities
Proceeds from long-term bomrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings
[ntercorporate borrowings received from holding company
Equity component of interest free loan received fiom holding company
Equity component of interest free loan repaid to holding company
Finance costs paid

Met cash used in from financing activities { C )

Met (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to statement of cash flows
i. Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on bhand
Balances with banks
in current account
in deposit accounts {with original maturity of 3 months or less)

ﬁ & Cé\.'.\
/o N\

5

o | Gurugram| 0|

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(331.18) (522.31)
175.38 17757
(1.62) (5.38)
- (0.02)
- 4.96
449,94 61639
(3.94) (4.16)
32 4385
291.80 271.91
(1.80) (.78}
(22.37) (33.14)
(7.03) 6.39
{5.01} (3.61)
12891 65.15
(18.24) 19.69
0,99 {0.23)
0.19 11.07
367.44 33543
1.20 {5.62}
368.64 329.81
{32.88) (3.86)
- Q.05
318.42 201.73
(335.70) (235,54)
291 258
(47.26) (35.04)
1,275.21 424.06
{3,634.78) (312.05)
43350 91.42
2,715.01 -
{44470} -
(688.02) (477.26)
(343.78) (273.82)
(22.40) 20.94
68 84 47.90
46.44 68.84
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.80 033
45.64 20.60
- 4791
46.44 68.84




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN Us5101MH2005PTC154475

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(A1l amounts in Rupees mitlions, idess otherwise stated)

ii. Movement in financial liabilities - Borrowings including accrued interest and nnamortised premium on optionally convertible redeemable debentores

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening Balance 5.183.17 4,840.60
Changes lrom Tinancing cash Mows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 1,708.71 51548
Repayment of non-current borrowings (3,634.78) (312.0%)
Finance cost paid (683.02) {477.26)
Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense 458.09 61639
Modification of financial Hability made during the year {1,520.90) -
Closing Balance 1,506.27 5,183.17

jit. The cash flows from operating activities section in Statement of Cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS 7

"Statement of Cash Flows"

The notes from Note 1 10 Mote 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our ceport of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directocs of
Chantered Acconntants Ascent Hotels Private Limited
ICAT Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 /
)
., | ALY
= % A
7 | |

él'%eln Kumar Tatlya Chakravarty
Fariner Director
Membership No.: 509822 DIN: (06813081 DIN: 08539291
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: Date: Date:

NRPAGS
N\ 7

Mikita Bhura
Comgeany Secretary
Membership Mo.: ACS25054

Place: Gurugram
Date:
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

Ascent Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India. The Company was
incorporated in India on 05 July 2005 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by
shares. The registered office of the Company is at B -7, Om Parshwanath Apartments, Desai and Sheth
Nagar, Sai Baba Nagar, B, orivali{W), Mumbai City, Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400092 and the
corporate office of the Company is situated at 14th Floor, Building 10 C, Cyber City, Phase-II, Gurugram,
Haryana, India, 122002.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of owning internationally branded hotels across key
cities in the Indian sub-continent. Presently, the Company has one hotel under it (Hyatt Regency, Pune)
which is operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
Board of Directors on 29 May 2024.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies, including changes thereto, are included in Note 2 and
Note 2.1.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for the following
items, which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date:

Items Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments

Also refer Note 42 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.
D. Critical estimates and judgments
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the

application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, habihtles income
and expenses. Actual results may dlf fer frorn these estimates.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is:

i) Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

ii) Useful lives and impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in
progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipmeat, capital work-in
progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets are based on estimates and assumptions
regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand, competition
and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress, right to use assets and other intangible assets
at the end of each reporting date.

iii) Employee benefit obligations

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices
in active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these modeis
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment
is required in establishing fair values.

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also, refer
Note 43 for further disclosures.

v) Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax
o ,-asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is

/R - ~~'probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized. el
LN ' v L)
|7
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

vi) Critical judgements in determining the discount rate:

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for the portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

E. Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
or cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

F. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control
framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility
for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly
to the Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from
the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
_period during which the change has occurred.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1)

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 39.

Material accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing
costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair
and maintenance expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from/ (up to) the date on which
the asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Ve




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

2)

3)

Asset Category® Management estimate of |Useful life as per Schedule 11
Useful Life to the Companies Act, 2013

Building 15-60 years 60 vears
Computers and accessories 3-6 years 3-6 years
Plant and machinery 5-2Q years 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 years 10 years
Vehicles 8 vears 8 years

Office equipment 5 years 5 years

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined
that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use
these assets. Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different
from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful life (at present three to ten years). The amortization period and
the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

i, Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that
are attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost

- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
asat FV'TPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payvments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
P4 These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
e
o
{ Gurugraimn |°
A\ /

N

~

\
——e” .



Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management,

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Company’s c¢laim to cash flows from specified assets {¢.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

at FYOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCIL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOC] a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

ifi. Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises 2 financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

v. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise compulsorily convertible debentures
denominated in INR that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder, when the number
of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially recognised at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity component is initially
recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and
the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounis in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in
the cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and
no gain or loss is recognised.

vi. Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are
measured at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash
flows and discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such
loans. The difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised
as equity component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at
amortised costs and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification
in the terms of such loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it
becoming perpetual debt such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been
treated as other equity.

viil. Modification of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this
case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Optionally convertible redeemable debentures

All financial liabilites are initially recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its
transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). However, if there is a
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value is
based on a quoted price in an active market or a valuation technique that uses only data from observable

}‘I,arkels, the Group recognizes the difference as a gain or loss at inception (*day 1 gain or lo 14
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN U5S101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

4

other cases, the entire day 1 gain or loss is deferred and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
over the life of the transaction until the transaction matures or is closed out.

Impairment

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not constder
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

-the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk {i.e. the risk of default oceurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed defauit
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full} to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufticient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. [mpairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated, if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
(or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviey gach reporting
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)
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6)

7

8)

9

date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such
a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventory to their present location and condition, In determining the cost, first in first out ("FIFO")
method is used. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i)
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (i) the grant/subsidy will be
received.

Provisions (other than employee benefits)

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates at each reporting date.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by
the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition and/or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capltahsat ) rowing costs
is suspended in the pt.nodfd'@ntgwhlch active development is delayed due to’ m E
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(41l amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

temporary interruption. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-
gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A, defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee
state insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution
already paid is less than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date, the deficit payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined bhenefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market
yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to
the terms of related obligattons.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income
and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past
service cost.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(ANl amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise siated)

{¢) Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The
Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee
renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the
Company has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the
passage of time,

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing,
the same is presented as Unbilled revenue,

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due {whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under
an obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized
as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods
or services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and other services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services (including banquet
and allied services) relating to hotel operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services
and sale of food and beverages which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages
are sold and other services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

Space rental

Space rental income comprise amount earned for use of hotel premises space by other parties. The
income is recognised when services are rendered as per the terms of the contract and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding collection of consideration.
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CIN US5101MH2005PTC154475

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The “effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

« the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
« the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit
or loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or
loss on a net basis.

14) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxatlon purpases.
Deferred tax is also recocmsed in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax is not recognised for

» temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that:
- is not a business combination; and
- at the time of transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
(ii} does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

« temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to
the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

» taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans for individual subsidiaries in the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised

or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seitle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets and they relate to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

15) Segment reporting

An operating segment is 2 component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Company’s other components and for which discrete financial information is available.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the
operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information
reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

16) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti -
dilutive.

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

19) Measurement of earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items
and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present eamings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation,
exceptional items and tax (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the
measurement, the Company does not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense,
exceptional items and tax expense.

20) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the
ordinary activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the
performance of the Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and
accordingly, disclosed in the financial statements.

21) Leases: Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA™) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, had issued Ind
AS 116 “Leases” which replaced the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 and other interpretations. Ind
AS 116 sets out the principles, for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
forboth lessors and lessees. It introduces a single, on- balance sheet leases accounting model for leases.

Company as a Lessee

On inception of a contract, the Company (as a lessee) assesses whether it contains a lease. A contract is
or contains a lease when it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
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value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates payments
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and
applies the lease accounting model only to lease components.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, any asset restoration obligation, and less any lease incentives received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are also
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased assets or renewal of the leases at the end of the lease term, recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated to a residual value over the shorter of their estimated useful life or lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including ‘in-substance fixed’ payments) and
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. ‘In-
substance fixed’ payments are payments that may, in form, contain variability but that, in substance,
are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise and excludes the effect of early termination options where the Company is not reasonably
certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum lease payments include the cost of a purchase option
if the Company is reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset after the lease term.

Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option and
any lease modification.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period over which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases
which guarantee a minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guaranteed amouat is considered
to be an ‘in-substance fixed’ lease payment and included in the initial calculation of the lease liability.
Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ are charged against the lease liability.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classified as financing cash flows.

Company as a Lessor

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease. The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a
straight- line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised over the
lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment
in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-
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23)

of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue
from contracts with customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and
liabilities.

2.1 Changes in material accounting policies

1) Material accounting policy information

The Company adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendment to Ind AS 1) from [ April
2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policy themselves,
they impact the accounting policy information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality 1o disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users
need to understand other information in the financial siatements.
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5  Non-current financial assets - Others
(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits (due to mature afier 12 months from the reporting date)* #

Security deposits
Less: interest accrued on security deposits

* including interest accrued on fixed deposits INR 1.36 (31 March 2023 - INR 1.23)
# includes deposits under lien amounting to INR 60,62 (31 March 2023 - INR 12.92)

[ Other tax assets

Tax deducted at source

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 Mareh 2023

61.98 14.15
16.12 9.79
(0.54) {0.27)
71.56 23.67
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
22.48 22.85
22.48 22.85
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7

Income tax
A: The major componenis of income tax expense are

Recognised in profit or loss
Current tax
Deferred 1ax

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Percentage Amount Percentage Amaount
Loss before tax {331.18) (52230)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tzx rate 2517 (85.36) 2517 (131.46)
Effect of:
Non recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences (34.75) 115.09 (24.74) 129.22
Non-deductible expenses - - {0.30) 1.58
Others 9.58 (3L7% {0.13) 0.66
Effective tax rate - - - -
The Company has adopted new tax regime under section 115BAA of the [ncome tax Act, 1961 wef FY 201920,
C. Deferred tax assets / labilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business (oss and depreciation 1.464.90 1,252.76
Dizallowance u's 43B of Income-tex Act, 1961 - 107.80
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 244 258
Provision for employee benefits 256 2.19
QOthers - 1.23
1,469.90 1,366.55
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets 36797 37582
Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) 15.90 19.51
383.87 395.63
Net deferred tax asset 1,086.03 970.92
1,086.03 970.92

Deferved tax asset not recognised*

Deferred tax asset recognised

*As at year end, the Company has significant unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961, Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised, because it is not pecobable that future taxable profit will be available against which entity can use the benefit therefrom
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D. Movement in temporary differences
31 March 2024

Balance as at Deferred tax Balance as at
01 April 2023 differences 31 March 2024
Particulars generated but not
recognised during
the year
Deferred tax assels
Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 1,252.76 212.14 1,464.90
Loss allowance for doubiful debis 2,58 (0.14) 244
Disallowance u's 43B of [ncome-tax Act, 1961 107.80 {107.30) -
Provision for employee benefits 219 0.36 2.56
Others 123 (123 -
1,366.55 103.33 1,469.90
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets (375.82) 7.85 {36797
Optionally convertible redeemable debentures {OCRDs) {19.81) 391 (15.90)
(395.63) 11.76 {383.87)
Net deferred tax asset 970.92 115.0% 1,086,03
31 March 2023
Balanece as at Deferved tax Balance as at 31 March
01 April 2022 differences 2023
Particulars generated but not
recoguised during
the year
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed busi loss and depreciation 113527 117.49 1,252.76
Loss allowance for doubtful debts 1.33 1.25 258
Disallowance u/s 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 96.04 276 107 80
Provision for employee benefits 217 0.02 219
Others 1.01 0.22 1.23
1,238,382 127.74 1,366.55
Dreferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-progress and Intangible assets (380.56) 474 {375.82)
Qptionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) (16.55) (3.26) (19.81)
(397.11) 1.48 (393.63)
Net deferred tax asset 841.71 129.22 970,92
E. Tax loss carried forward
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised with expicy date as follows
As At
31 March 2024
Amount Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 56767 2031-32
Business loss 51295 2030-31
Business loss 759.20 202930
Business loss 32821 2028-29
Business loss 4.58 2026-27
Business loss 2370 2025-26
Unabsorbed depreciation 3,564.18 Never expire
As at
31 March 2023
Amount Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 389.06 2030.31
Business loss 75208 2429-30
Business loss 32821 2028-29
Business loss 458 2026-27
Business loss 83.70 202526

Unabsorbed depreciation = 341999 Never expire
N
) V- -
) LY 7
s
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8 Other mon-current assets As at As at
{tmzecwred. considered good} 31 March 2024 3t March 1023
Advances other than capital advamces
Prepaid expenzes BT 0140
Capital advances 625 =

14.42 0.10

9 Tnventories Asat As at

frafwed ar the fower of cost or net realisable value) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Baverages 1092 9.12
10,92 9.12
Carrying amount of inventones pledged as secunty for lishilwies INR 1092 {31 March 2023 - INR. 2. 12)

[ 1] Current financial assets - Trade receivables Asan As at
{Unsecured) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade receivables
-Considered good 517 44102
-Credil impaired 478 560
Unbilled revenue ®
-Considered good 2053 1349

8545 6311
Lass alkowance {268} 10.23)
TS50 %2.88
a) Refer note 34 for dues from related parties
b) The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks and boss allowances related to trade receivables are dizclosed in note 35
* Mer of advance from customers of MR 35.04 (31 March 2023 - [INR 4.04)
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from the date of transaction
Particulars Unhilled revenue | Less than 6 months | & monilks - 1 vear | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 2053 5512 260 117 082 0.46 £0.70
{11} Und: d irade receivables — credit impaired - - - 028 - 4 50 4.78
Total .53 5512 2.60 1.45 0.52 4.96 5548
As at 31 March 2023
O ding for Fol ¢ periods from the date of tr
Particulars Unbilled revenue | Less than 6 months | 6 months - | year | 1- 2 years Z-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed Irade bles — iderzd good 13,42 36,59 6135 1.1 ol 0lé 5151
(i) Undisputed irade receivables — credit impaired - - 039 - 007 514 5.60
Total 1349 36.59 6.54 111 0408 5.3 3.1

The company does not have amy dispured dues which are receivable as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
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11A  Current linencial assets - Cash and cash eqoivalents

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 3023

Balances with banks
- on current accounts 45 64 20,60
Cash on hand 0.80 0.33
On deposit accounts (with ongioal maturity of less than 3 months)y* - 47.91
46.44 69.84
* including interest accrued on Bxed deposits [NR. Mil (31 March 2023 - INR 0.06)
11B  Current linancial assets - bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above As at Asail
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bank deposits with eripinal maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months * - 50.74
= 50,74
* including interest accrued on fixed deposits [NR Nil (31 March 2023 - INR 9.2
12 Current linancial assets - Others As at As at
(Unsecired, considered good) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Recoverable from povernment authoritiss 710 13
Other receivables 0.60 -
Security deposits # .11 0.27
Bank deposits {dus to mature within 12 monihs from the reporting date)* 2011 -
28.92 7.58
# includes interest accrued on secunity deposit of [NR 0.54 {31 March 2023 - [NR 0.27)
* including interest accrued on fixed deposits DNE. 0.11 {31 March 2023 - [NR Nili
13 Other current assets As at As af
Unsecured, considerad good) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
StaiT advance 003 -
Advance to suppliers 9.31 151
Balance with statutory authorities 9.87 172
Prepaid expenses * 925 12.11
28,46 23.34

* includes currert portion of nor-current prepaid expenses amounting to [NE 0.01 (31 March 2023 - INR 6.92)
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14 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of [MR. 10 each

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of TMR. 10 each

a) Reconciliation of the equity shares

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

ding at the begi

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amgunt Number Amount
130,000,000 1,300.00 130,000,000 1,300
130,000,000 1,300.00 130,000,000 1,300.0¢
127,801,486 1,278.01 127,801,486 1.278.01
127,801,486 1,278.01 127,801,486 1,278.01
ing and at the end of reporting year
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
127,801,486 1,278.01 127,801,486 1.278.01
127,801,456 1,278.01 127,801,486 1,278.01

The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitked 10 one vole per share. The equily shares are entitled to receive dividend as and when

declared In the event of kiquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the C after distribution of all preferential The distribution will be in
proportion 1 the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
c) Shares held by holding/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Name of shareholder Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
SAMHI Hatels Limited * 127,801,486 1.278.01 127,801,486 1.278.01
) Names of the sharcholders holding more than 5% of clasgs of shares
Name of shareholder Agat As at
Equity shares 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number % of shares Number % of shares
SAMHI Hotels Limited* 127,801 486 1H00% 127,301,486 100%
* Mr. Gyana Das holds | equity share as a nomines shareholder
€) No shares have been allotted without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance Sheet date
) Refer note 16 for shares reserved in respect of Cptional Cx ible Red ble Deb (OCRDs).
£} Refer Note 34 for shares pledged by holding company in respect of bormowings
h) Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2024
S.n0 Promoter Name Nn.. oltsham at the Chanpe during the No. of shares at the 2% of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
1 SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding company} 127,801,486 - 127,801 486 100 -
As ar 31 March 2023
S0 P ter Name Na.. nl:shares atthe Change during the Neo. of shares at the % of Total Shares % change during
beginning of the year year end of the year the year
1 SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding company} 127,801,486 - 127,801,486 100 -
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15  Other equity

Securities premium
Retained earnings
Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company

a) Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : additions made during the year
Balance at the end of the year

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1,048.85 1,048.85
(5,257.20) (4,925.79)
4,106.46 315.25
(101.89) (3,561.68)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1,048.85 1,048.85

1,048.85 1,048.85

Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2013.

b) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Lass for the year

Transferred from other comprehensive income
Balance at the end of the year

Retained earnings reprasent the amount of accumulated profits/(losses) of the Company.

¢) Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Modification of financial liability made during the year (refer note 16(d))
Add: Additions made during the year

Less: Repaymenis made during the year

(4,925.79) (4,403 .26)
(331.18) (522.31)
{0.23) (0.22)
(5,257.20) {4,925.79)
315.25 31525
1,520.90 .
2,715.01 .
{444.70) .
4,106.46 315.25

SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding company) has granted loan in the year 2021-22, where loan is perpetual debt with nil rate of interest and option
1o repay the loan is with the company. Accordingly the same is classified as equity. Also refer note 16(d).

d) Other comprehensive loss (net of tax)- Remeasurement of defined liability / asset

Balance at the beginning of the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax)
Transferred to retained earnings

Balance at the end of the year

(0.23)
0.23

0.22)
0.22

This represents the remeasurements of defined benefit liability and comprises actuarial gains and losses.
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a)

Now-current financiat labilities - Borrowings

From bank (secured) (refer 'b' below}
Term Loan $

From financial institutions (secured) (refer ‘e below)
Term loan**

Optionally convertible redeemable debeniures (OCRD) unsecured (refer ‘2’ below)
31 March 2024, 6,726,394, 31 March 2023: 5,726,354 OCRDs of INR. 100 each held by Yascon Enginesrs Linmited

Loan from holding company (unsecured) *

Less: interest accrued but not due on borowings (Refer note 21)
Less; current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer note 19}
Total

% including interest acerued but not due on term loan ffom bank amounting 16 N 0.29 (31 March 2023 - [NR 0.60)
** including interest accrued but not due on term loan from fi ial instilution ing to INR Nil (31 March 2023 - INR 308 30)
* ingluding interest accrued but not Jue on loan from holding company amounting to TNE Mil {31 March 2023 - MR 124 83)

Terms and conditfons of Optional Convertible Redeemable Debentures (OCRDs) (wosetured)

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1,265 21 8137

- 3.851.52

1,265.21 393289

11106 2470

= 1,024 75
(029) (308 90)
(1275) (33613)

1,363.23 439731

In March 2016, the Company 1ssued 5,896,566 OCRDs with 2 face value of INR 10 each at a premium of [NR 35 23 each and 829,828 OCRDs with a face value of TNR. 10 each at a premium of TNR 35,19

each to Vascon Engineers Limited

Redemption
a) The OCRDs are redesmable on | April 2036
b) Terms of Redemption :

1) The OCRDs are redeemable for an amount equivalent to the fair market value of such number of equity shares as are equivalent to 1 43 times the number of OCRDs in case the Company achieves the

target of EBITDA of INR. 70 Crores in any financial year prior 1o | April 2036, or

ii) The QCRDs are redeemable for an amount equivalent to the fair market value of such number of equity shares as are equivalent the number of OCRDs in case the Company does not achieve the target

of EBITDA of INR 70 Crores in any financial year prior1o 1 April 2036

Conversion
a) The QCRDs can be converted at the option of the subscriber at any time afier | April 2021

b} Terms of Conversion -

i} The OCRDs will be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 43 in case the Company achieves the target of EBITDA of INR 70 Crores in any financial year prior o date of exercise of option to

convert

i) In any ather case, the OCRDs wall be converted into equity shares m the ratio of 1:1

The effective interest rate on OCRDs is 7.21% per annum

Proceeds from issne of OCRDs
Less: Fair value of OCRDs *
Unamortised premiur on OCRDs

QCRDs balance at the beginning of the year
Lossf{gain} recognised i statement of profir and loss
OCRDe balance at the end of the year

March 2016 (Date of
issue)
304 20
(R7.54)
216.66
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
84 70 86.30
2636 (210}
111.06 84.70

* The derived fair value has been caleulated based on the present value of sxpected cashflows! convertible value of OCRDs on maturity (Level 3) Significant unobservable inputs far measurement of fair

value include EBITDA multiple, EBITDA growth rate and discount rate

The Company did not have any continuing defaults in ihe repayment of loans and interest. There has been no loan covenant defaulis and there has been no intimation from the banks/ Anancial instintions

for recalling any loan facility
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Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101 MH2005PTC 154475

Notes te the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{48 amowrts in Rupees miftions, wess otferise siafed)

17

13

0

Non-current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity {rafer nots 27)
Compensated absences (refer note 27)

Other non-current liabilithes

Unamortised premium on optionally convertible redeemabile debentures (OCRDs) #

# The difference between the fair value at initial recognition (the transaction price) and the valee that would have been denived had val

k 1

fon, less is as follows:

Unamortised balance as at the beginning of the year
Amori gnised in the $ of Profit and Loss
Unamortised balance as at the end of the year

Non-current porton
Current portion

Current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer noie 16)

Current financial liabilities - Trade payables

total outstanding dues of micro enterprizes and small enlerprises (MSME})
total ding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enfemrises

a) Refer note 37 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (M3SMED).

b) Rafer note 34 for dues to related parties.

) The Company's expesure to currency and liquidity risks relaved to trade payables is disclosed note 35,

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1.89 1.54
217 1.82
4.06 3.36
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
119.17 130.00
119.17 130.00
ion techniques been applied at initial
140.83 151.66
(10.83) (10.83)
130.00 140.83
119,17 130.00
10.83 1083
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
12.75 336.13
12.75 336.13
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
28.25 1948
32637 204.08
354.62 223.56

0 ding for following periods from ithe date of fransaction
i Accrued
Particulars - Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years |More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME = 28.23 0.02 - - 18.25
(it} Others 20861 109.05 432 1.77 2.62 32637
Total 208.61 137,28 4.3 1.77 2.62 354.62
Asg at 31 March 2023
O ding for following periods from the date of iran
Parficulars ::;::; Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years | More than 3 years Total
(i MSME - 18.73 .75 - - 19.4%
(ii) Cthers 70.05 69.73 2861 24.74 10.95 204.08
Toral 70,05 8846 29.36 24.74 10.95 223.56

The company does not have anry disputed dues which are payable as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
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22

13

Current finanelal liabitittes - Others

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note [6)
Employes related payables

Payable for capital assets

Security deposits recsived

Orther curvent liabilities

Advance from customers
Statutory dues payable
Unamortised premium on optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDs) (refer note 18}

Cuorrent provisions

Provision for employee beneficy
Gratuity (refer note 27)
Compensaied absences {rafer note 27)

As at
31 March 2024

0.29
1677
2.64
1.03
20.73

As at
31 March 2024

34,62
21.02
10.83
66.47

As at
31 March 2024

1.27
1.54
2.51

As at
31 March 2023

30890
16.41
012
1.20
326,63

Asg at
31 March 2023

26,54
44.33
10.83
84.70

As at
31 March 2023

106
1.23
2.29




Ascent Hotels Privale Limited

CIN USS101MH200SPTCI184478

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 3t March 2024
(Al amrounty in Rupeey nulfions, wiless orhernise siated)

4

15

26

27

Revenue [rom operations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of services
- Room revenue 63731 52714
- Food and beverage revenue 493 89 39107
- Recreation and other services 4776 2308
1.184.9% 941.25
Coniract Balances
The contract liabilities primarily relate 10 the advance consideration received from for which is recognized when the performance obligation is over/ services delivered Ad collection 15
recognised when payment is received before 1he related perfc bligation is satisfied This includes ad received from the customer towards rooms? banq Revenue is recagnised once the
performance obligation is met i.£ on room stayf sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services
Excess of revenue over invoicing is recorded as unbilled revenue
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers 3462 2954
The amount of revenue of INR 19 45 (31 March 2023 (NR 11 29) recognised in the reporting period was included in advance from balance at the beginning of the period
Conlract assets
Trade receivables 7580 52 88
Motes:-
1 Considening the nature of business of the Compary, the above made receivables are converted into cash within the same operating cycle
2 Revenue recognised in the slatement of Profit and Loss is same as the conlracled price
Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest income from financial assets al amortised cost
- on bank deposits 281 342
- on security deposils 027 024
Liabilities/provision no longer required written back 162 538
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.02
Rental income 172 a3z
Interest on income tax refund 036 851
Miscellaneous income - a3
7.28 10.02
Cost of materiak consumed For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2013
Cansumption of (ood and beverages
[nventory at the beginning of the year e12 734
Add: purchases during the year 4111 9678
Inventory at the end of the year {1092 9.12)
139.31 95,00
Ewmployee benefits expense For the year ended For the year eaded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 12129 11339
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer 'a' betow) 351 820
Compensaled absences (refier 'b' below} 237 3134
Staff welfare expenses 1938 1832
151.55 143,28

a. Defined Contribution plams

k I

The Company's employees prowdent fund and employee siats i
relation ta the schemes and shown under Employee benefits expense in profit or loss. Also refer note 32

b. Compensaled absences - other long term employee benelits
The Principal ptions used in d ining the obhgalion are as given below:

h are defined contribution plans A sum of INR 3 51 (31 March 2023 - [NR 8§ 20) has been recognised as an expense in

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
% %
Discounting rate T15 706
600 £.00

Salary growth rale




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN UES101 MH2Z00EPTC 154475

Motes to the financial siatements for the year emded 31 March 2024
{AH amonnis in Rupees millions, niless ovhervise siated)

<. Defined Beaeflt Plan

The C has a defined benefit ity plan. Every employse who has completed five years or more of service gels a gratity on departure at |5 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of

service, or part thereof in excess of 6 months The scheme iz not funded
These plans typically expose the Company 1o actuarial risks such as investment risk, inherent mierest rate risk , longevity risk and salary risk
Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan Lability (denominated in Indian Rupes) is calculated wsing a discount rate which is determined by reference to markel yields al the end of the reporting period on
government bonds .

Interest rate risk
The defined benefn obligation calculated uses a di rale based on government bonds 1Fbond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will 1end to mcrease

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined henefit plan lishility 12 caleulated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employ Ani in the life exp of
the plan participants will increase the plan's

Jiability

Salary visk
Higher than expecled increases in salary will i the defined benefi obligati

The following lables 15 the comp of net benefit expense recognised in profit or loss and gmsed in the Bal Sheet for the said plan

a) Expesse recognised in Profit or Loss
Panticulars

Current service cost

Interest cost
Total exp vecognised in the S of profit and less
by R emenls recognized directly in other comprehensive income

Particulars

-ch in

- changes in experience adiustments

Amount guized in other comp ive income

F1 ol

cj Change in present value of benefit obllgation

Particulars

Present value of ablization as at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

[nierest cost

Acwarial (gain)/loss

Benefits paid

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

d) A tober ized in Bal sheel

Particulars

Present value of the defined benefil obligation at the end of the year
Met Hability recognized in the Balance Sheel

Non-current
Current

For the year ended
31 March 2024
0.50
0.18
.68
For the year ended
31 March 2024
023
.23
For the year eaded
31 March 2024
260
050
alg
023
035)
3.16
As al
31 March 2024
Ji6
3.16
189
127

For the year ended
31 March 2023

039
015
0.54

For the year ended
31 March 2023
{¢12)
034
0.22

For the year ended
31 March 2023

334

039

LHN 3

022

{150

.60
As at
31 March 2023

1460
.60

154
104




Ascent Hotels Private Limited

CIN LISST01MHIMSPTCIS4TS

Notes to the financial statements for ike year ended 31 March 2024
Al amotes in Ripees mitflons, waless othernise stased)

2) The Principal assumptions used in determining Lhe gratuity bemefit obligalion are as given below

As au As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
% ]
Discounting rate 115 106
Salary growth rate 6.00 500

The discount rate i3 generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the labilities

The salary growth rale takes account of imflation, senionity, prometion and other relevant factors on long term: basis

As at As al
Demographic assumptions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retirement Age {years) b3 58
Mortality Table 100% of 1ALM 100% of [ALM
(2012-2014} {2012-2014)
Withdrawal Rate b0 e
Ages
Up to 30 years 52 52
From 31 w 44 years 52 52
Above 44 years 52 52
(f) The Company's best est: of exg fior the nexa year is INR 0.65 {31 March 2023 - [NR 1 00)
ili. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 10 one of the relevant actuarial assumnptions, holding ather
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Increase * Decrease * Increase * Decrease *
Diseount rate ($ 5% movement) [ulix]] 0.03 (0.02) 002
Future salary arowth (0 5% movement} 003 (0.03) 002 (0.02)

Although the enalysis does not take acoount of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown
* Posilive p i in prowisi

* Negative amounl represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity due 1o withd | and mortality are not malerial

Weighled average duration of defined benefit obligation 1 39 years (31 March 2023 1 40 years)

g} Maturity profile of defined bemefit obligation

31 March 2024
Qe | year 127
Tto 2 year 083
2t 3 year 043
3 1o 4 year 022
410 5 vear 01l
510 € year 005
6 year onwards 025
316
31 March 2023
Oto 1 year 1.06
1o 2 year an
2103 year 033
3104 year i}
410 5 year 409
5 to 6 year 004
& year onwards Q15

.60
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28 TFinance costs

19

30

3

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[nterest expense on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
- Loans from banks 2nd financial institutions 351.62 50563
- Optionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDW (refer note 16,18 and 22)* 15.52 (12.94)
- Loan from holding company 62.81 113.42
Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues 509 6.28
Other finance cost 14.90 4.00
449.94 616.39
* net of amortisation of premium on OCRDs amounting fo INR 10.83 (31 March 2023 - INR 10.83)
Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 175.11 177.07
Armortisation of intangible assets 0.27 0.50
175.38 177.57
Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Repair and maintenance
- Building [2.07 11.55
- Machinery 1217 10.35
- Others 699 870
Advertisemnent and business promotion 39.806 27.82
Commission 1537 2867
Communication 2241 21.08
Consurmnption of stores and supplics 43.70 3112
Contractual labour 58.93 42.60
General administration expenses 1.45 1.30
Insurance 4.90 5.07
Legal and professional charges {refer note 38) 124.64 311
Loss on forgign exchange fluctuation {net) 322 485
Government grant written off’
Management and incentive fees 50.39 3938
Payment to auditors {refer below)* 258 1.95
Power, fuel and water 130,58 127,51
Loss allowance for trade receivables - 4.96
Rates and taxes 1878 31.73
Rent {refer note 39) 0.06 0.06
Travelling & conveyance 11.43 627
Miiscellaneous expenses 7.7 i.28
607.24 441,36
*Payment to anditors
As auditors
Statutory audit 210 1.80
Other services 0.10 -
Reimbursement of expenses 038 0.15
2.58 .95
Losses per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year atiributeble to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to the equity holders by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the

weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the ditutive potential equity shares into equity shares

For the year ended
31 March 2024
Net loss attributable to equity sharebolders (331.18)
Weighted average nutnber of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 127,801 486
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulation of diluted EPS 127,801,486
Nominal value of equity share (INR} 10
Basic eamning per share (INR) (2.59)
Diluted eamning per share ([NR)* (2.59)

* The outstanding potential equity shares have an anti-dilutive effect on EPS. 1,

‘| Gurugram ’"U

X i 4

.\‘.

not been considered for calculation of dily <
) S

For the year ended

31 March 2023
(32231}
127,801 486
127,801,486
10
(4.09)
(4.09)
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33

Contingent liabilities and commitments
fto the extent not provided for}

Cantingent liabilities

In February 2019, Supreme Court of [ndia i i1s judgement clanfied the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under The Employees’ Provident
Funds And Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the application of judgement retrospectively and as
such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods.

Operating Segments

The Helding Company’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {"CODM'), since he is responsible for all major decisions w.r.t. the
preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility. CODM has examined the Company's
performance from product and peographic perspective and has identified a single business segment ie. "Developing and running of hotels”, hence no specific disclosures have been
made.

A, [Information about producis and services
The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

B. Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India. Further, there are no non-current assets located outside India

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to 10 per cent or more of the entity’s ravenue
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34 Related party disclosures

a) Related party and natare of related party relationship where conirod exists:

Description of relationship Name of the Party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

b) Other related parties with whom iransactions have been taken place:

Description of relationship MName of the Party

Arzon Holels Private Limited

Bargue Hotels Private Limiled

SAMHI Hotels (Gurgaon) Privale Linted
SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary

¢} Transactions durimg the year

Particulars

Holding Ci

Fellow

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2024

31 March 2013

Ealdi
Y

Interest on lpan from comp

SAMHI Hotels Limited

62 81

11342

haldi i

Loans from C e}

SAMHI Hotels Limited

433 50

9142

Non-current lmancial liabilities - Borrowings

S$AMHI Hotels Limited

ial liability made during the year frefer nole {6(d1)

1.520.50

-Modification of fi

| Equity comp i of interest free boans from Holding C

SAMHI Hotels himited

- Loan received

271501

- Loan repaid

444 70

Reimbursement of exper

SAMH! Hotels (Gurgaon) Privale Limited

239

Barque Holels Povale Limed

005

Argon Hotels Private Limited

Other expenses

Legal and profi | fees

SAMHI Hotels Limied

11759

27138

d} Year end balances

Particulars

Halding Company

Feltow sub

Py

¥

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Other equity

Equity component of interest free loans from Holding Company

SAMHI Hotels Limied

4, 10646

31525

MNon-corrent financial liabilities - Borrowings

SAMHI Hotels Limited {includes interest d}

1.024.75

Trade receivables

SAMHI Hotels (G ) Private Limited

066

088

Barque Hotels Private Limiled

005

Trade payables

SaMHI] Hotels Limited

165 24

1545

In addition to transactions above,

- there 15 a pledge aver shares of the company held and awned by Samhi Hotels Limited. in respect of borrowings from banks and financial instilulions taken by the Company

- refer note 16 (¢) in respect of security provided by SAMH) Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limiled for ioans from PHL Fininves! Privale Limited

- there is a pledge over sharez held and owned by SAMHI Holels Limited, in respect of bormowings from DES Bank [ndia Limited taken by SAMHI Holels Limited
- the Company has pravided undenaking cum guarantee on behalf of SAMHI Hotels Limited in respect of barrowings from Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Lirited taken by SAMHI Hotels Limited

amounting ko INR 750 00

During the corrent year, the [oans related 1o above secunity have been repaid

In addition to transaclions above,

- the Holding Company has provided undeniaking on behalf of the Company in respect of lerm loan obtained from banks (refer note 16)

For the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the company has nol recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owned by relaled parties

This assessment s underiaken at each reporing penod

§8C
o NGO
411 v

+
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35 Financial ingiryments — Fair values and risk managemend

A} Financial instrumenis by category and fair valoe

The below table the jud; and made in d iming the: fair values of the financial instruments that are (a} recogmised and measured a1 fair value and (b} measured at amortised cost and
for which Far values are disclesed in the fi | To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair vaiue, the Company has classified its financial instruments. into the
thres levels f ibed under the ing standard
31 March 2024
Level of hierarchy Fair Value Threugh Fair Value Through Amoriised Cost
Particalars Prafli and Loss (F¥TPL) | Other Comprelensive
Income (FVTOCH)

Fi ial assers

Other non-currenl fmancial assets - - - 7156

Trade raceivables = - - 75 80

Cash and cash equivalenls - . - 46.44

Bank balances oher than cash and cash equivalents above - - - -

Chher current £ | asgels - - - 2892
Totadl fi ial assets - - 2128.72

Financial liabilities

Mon-current Bormowings 23 . - 1,363.23
Current borrowines 2 - - 1275
Trade payables - B - 154 62
Other currant financial liabilities - - - 2073
Total fi ial liabilites - - 1,751.33
31 March 2023
Level of hierarchy Fair ¥alue Through Fair Value Threugh Amortised Cost
Particulars Profit and Less (FYTPL} | Other Comprebensive
Income (FYTOCT)
Fi ial assels
Onher non-current financial assers - - - 2367
Trade receivables - - - 3288
Cash and cash eguivalenis . - - &8 84
Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalenis above - - - 50T
Orther current financial assets - - - 738
Total fi ial nssels - - 203.711

Financinl liabilities

Non-current Borrowings 23 - - 49711

Current bomowings 2 - - 33613

Trade ] - - - 221536

Qther current financial luabilities - - - 32663
Total i ial Mabdlities - - 5.283.63
A) Financial imstrumenis by catezory and Fair value
Finamcial assets and liabilities measured ar lair value - recurving fair value measurements

As at Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2013

Fimanciat liabilities
Cptionally convertible redeemable debentures (OCRDY) {Level 3) 1106 8470

The Fair value of trade receivables, unbilled revenue, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis, other curreni financial assets, curment bommowings, trade payables and other curment
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amonnts, due 1o their short-1erm nature

Imerest rates on non-current borrowings (fram bank and fi | insti are equivalent to the marker raie. Such bomowangs are contracted ar floauing rates and rags are reget at short intervals. Accordingly, the
carmyimg value of such borrowings approximares fair value
Fair valus of bank deposits included in non-current other financial asseds included in non-current loans are equivalent 1o their camying amouni, a5 the interest rate on them s equivatent 1o markel rate.

B} Measurement of fair values
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. There has been no transfer between Level ), Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended 21
March 2024 and 31 March 2023

Valwati hnsque used do d i Tair vahie
Specific valuai hnique used 1o value fi i include:
- [air value of optionally convertible red ble deb {OCRD) is compuled based on moente carlo method of valuation of the instrument
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) Details of significant umobservable inputs

Significant uoshservable inpuls Inter-relanonship beiween sipnificant unebservable inpwts snd lair value
Agat As at Remarks
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Oprionally convertible redeemable det (OCRD) ( d}

Business Value 1.626.63 1,246 35(The estimated Fair value would i {d ] if the bausil vaiue was
higher {lower}

Risk Free rate 7 23% 7 64%| The eshmated Far value would increase {decrease) if the risk free rate was
higher {lower)

Wolatiliry rate 59 00% 59 15%| The estimaled fair value would increase {decrease} if the volatlity rate was
higher (lower)

D) Financial risk management
Risk mamagement framework
The Company's activities expose it to a vanety of financial rsks: market risk (including forgen exchanne risk and interest rate nisk), credit nsk and liquidiry risk

The Holding Company's chief financial officer under the directions of the board of directors impl financial nsk a5 policies across the Company. The Company's nsk policies are established to dentify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk hmits and conirals, to manitor risks and adherence to limits in order 1@ minimize the financial impact of such risks. The risk management policies and systems are reviswed

regularly to reflect changes in market condivons and the Company's activines.

i Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Company ifa party 19 a financial i fails 1o meet its contraciuat obligations. The camrying amount of financial assets rap the maxi credit risk

The Company tras credir policies in place and the expasures to these credlt risks are monitored on an ongoing basis

The Company’s policy is to place cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances with banks and financial institution ¢ panies with 2o0d credil rating

The Company has given security deposils ko various staiutory authorities and 1o vendors for securing services from them and rental d for empl BEE daui Further, the Company has other receivable balances
oulstanding as at year end from vendors against cost reimbursement. The Company does not expect any default from these panies and al:oordmgly the rsk of defaull is negligible or nil

In respact of credit exp from trade receivables, the Company has established a credit policy under which each new is analysed individually for credi h beflore enlering inlo contract Credit limils are established
for each custormer, reviewed regularly and any sales g those limits require approval from the appropa th

The Company establldies an allowanee for impairment that represents its expected credit bosses in respect of rade receivables The management uses a simplified approach for the purpose of computalion of expected credir loss for
trade ivables In credit risk, customers are Companyed according to their credit charactenistics, mcluding whether they are an mdividual or legal entity, !helr geographical location, industry and existence of

previous financial difficulties, ifa.ny

There are no significant concentrations of credit rish within the Company.
The Group considers a financial assel 1o be in default when:

+ the debior is unlikely to pay its credic obligations to the Grou i full; or
« the financial asser is more than rwo years past due

The provigian marix used for d ining bass all on trade receivables as at 31 March 2024 is 0-180 days: 3. 27%, 180-363 days: 31 3196, 366-547 days. 56 25%, 548-729 days: 80 38%, >= 730 days: 100%

Reconciliation of boss alowange provision

Fer the year emded Fer the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2013
Trade recelvables
Opening balance 1023 L)
Provision no longer required written back (0-55) -
Provision made during the year - 4.9
Clasing balance 9.69 10.23
For the year ended For (ke year emded
31 March 2034 31 March 2023
Cuarrent mancial assets- others
Opening balance - 305
Provision no longer required written back during the year - {31.05)
Clasing balamee - -
The impai isions for fi | assets disclosed above are based on assumptions abow risk of defaull and expacted boss raies The company uses judgement in makmg these assumplions and selecnng the inpuis to the

|mpm1ent calmlauon based on the Company’s past history, exishng marker conditions a5 weHl as forward looking ¢stimates at the end of sach reporting period

it Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with ws financial habilivies thay are setled by dehvmng cash or anouter financial asset The Company's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will kave sufficient liquidity to rmeel ils Liabilinies when they are dus, under both normal and d ions, without i i unaceeplable losses or nsking damage to Company™s
reputalicn

& ratling, £ of the Company's liquidity posuuon and cash and cash equivalenis on lhe bagis of expacied cash flows 10 ensure i has sulficient cash to meet operational needs Such forecasung wakes ko
consideration the Company’s debt refinancing plans, und P

Ultimate responsibility for |Iql.lldll)’ risk management rests with the board of di which has established an approp licquidity risk ¢ & k for the of the Company's shont-leem, medium term and
{ong-1erm fundmg and licquidity T Refer note 41 which covers liguidity risk managemeni of the Company 86\

('.
] 1
:m —UI
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(a) Expasure ro liquidity rick
The following are the M | maturities of financial fiabilities al the reportmg, date The are gross and und i
C l cash Mlows

3 March 2024 Carrying amount Total 0-1 year I-% years 2-5 years More than 5
Nen - devivative financial liabilities
Mon-current borrowmngs 1353 23 140817 . 2296 165 80 1,217.41
Current borrowings 1275 1275 1275 - - -
Trade payables 15462 15462 35462 - - -
Other current financial liabilities 3073 2073 2073 - - £

1,751.33 1,794.27 388. 10 2296 185.80 1L2tT41

Coniractual cash fows

31 March 2023 Carrying ameunt Tatal 01 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5
MNon-derivative fmandial Liabilities
Mon-current borrowings 4,397 31 4,437 98 . 53325 242375 142098
Current bomowings 33613 33613 33613 - . -
Trade payables 22356 22356 22356 - -
COther current financial liabiliies 326 63 32663 32663 - - -

5.28).63 5324.30 36,32 53).25 2A2).75 1,480,938
(b) Financing arrangemenis
The company had access to the following undrawn b g facilities at the end of the reporting period:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Floating rate
Expiring beyond one year {term kan from banks/financial inslicons) 994 64 5794
Overdraft faciliey 150.00 -
1.144.64 57.94

i, Mavked rick
Marker risk is the rish thar the changes in market prices such as foreign exchangs rates and inlérest rates, thal will affect the Company’s expense or the value of it holdings of financial insmurmenis. The objectve of market risk
management is 1o manage and control market risk ex within acceptable p while optimising the retum
Currency risk
Currency risk for the Company is the risk thal the future cash cutllows on account of payables for management fees and other expenditure wall Auciuate because of changes in foreign exchange rales The Company is 2xposed to the
effecis of ] ion it the p ling Forzign t rales on its financial position and cash Aows Exp arizes primanly due to exch rate fl ions b the functional and odher tes, The
kit i foreign exch rate exp arising from foreign currency Tansactions on pericdic basis and follows appropriale risk management policies

Exposure to curremcy risk

The Company's exposure (9 foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting panod are as fellows:

31 March 2024 Currency Ameunt in Tereign Amound in INR
cmrrency (in millions) (in millligas)

Financial liabiities

Trade payables usp 041 3579

31 March 2023
Corrency Amownt in fareign Amount in INR

turreacy (in millions) {in millions)

Finantial liabilities
Trade payables UsD 103 8455
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k1

Sensitivity analysis

A bl bl h dening) of the Indian Rupes aganst foreign currency al year end would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominaled in farsien currency and affected equity and profir ar
loss by the amounls showm below, T'hls analysis assumes that all cther variables, in particular interest rales, remain consiand and ignores any impact of forecasi sales and purchases

(Profit) / loss Equity, met of tax
Effect i INR Sremnth Weakenine < - Waal
31 March 2024
USD { 1% movement) 036 {0 36} 36 (0.36)
0.36 (.36} 0.36 10,36)
{Profit) / esg Equity, net of tax
Effect in INR Strengthening Weakeni heni Weakening
31 March 2023
LSIH( 1% movement} 085 (0 85) DBS 10 85)
0.85 {0,55) 085 10.85)
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that te fair value or future cash flows of a Anancial i will {1 bacause of changes in market interest rares. The Company’s exposure (o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates

primarily ko the Company’s borrowings abhgations with Noating interest rates

The company evalyales the interest rates in the market on regular basis to explors the option of refinancing of the borrowings of the Company Mereover, majority of the Company's bormowings are primarily linked 12 Noating inteest
raies, thereby resulting in the ad} of its b ing costs in ling with the market inlerest

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company™s interest-baaring francial inswuments is as follows:

Nominal amoumt
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed-rate insiruments
Fmancial asseis - Bank deposits 52 09 LLZ 80
8109 11250
Variable-rase insiruments
Fmancial ligbilities - Term loans from banks 126521 8137
Fmancial lizbilities - Term loans from Financial [nstituhions. - 3,85152
Touak LM7H 4.045.69

Fair valve sensitivity analysis for ixed-rate instroments

The Company does not account For any fived-rate Anancial as2ms or financial liabilivies av Fair value through profit of loss. Therefore, a change in inlerest rales at the reperiing dane would not affect profit or loss. Also refer note 364 far
fair value disclosure

Cash flow Sensitivity amalysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis peints m interest raes at the reporting dare would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, remain
constan

{Profit) / sy Equity, net of tax
10 bp increase 10} by decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrense
31 March }l4
Financiat liabilines 27 (27 74) 1774 (2774
27T (27.14) LM (27. 14}
31 March 2013
Financial liabilines 3930 (39.30) 1930 (3930)
3030 (39.30) 3930 (30.30)
Capital Management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base 50 as to maniain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business
The Board of directors of the Holding company sesks 10 maintain a balance between the higher remes that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages and secunty afforded by a sound capital pesition

The Company monitors capital using loan to valus (LTY) method 1o ensure that the loan to value does not increase beyond 55%: on any given reponting dare 2t Company level The company is in the process of complying with the said
The Company is not subject to lly imposed capital req

As a pan of its capital management palicy, the Company did not have any defaulls in the repayment of loans and interest. There have been no loan covenant defaults
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Digclosures under Micro, Small and Medivm Enierprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)

Dues to micre and small suppliers
The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Principal 2825 1948
[nterest 0.32 0.22
The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 69.96 2739
The amount of interest paid under the act beyond the appointed day during the year 132 0.09
The amount of interest dug and payable for the period of delay tn making payment {which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006 1.64 031
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 237 073

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unti! such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid 10 the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the
Act

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services te the Company and which qualify under the deftnition of micre and small enterprises, as
defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises As at
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company

During the year SAMHI Hotels Limited (the Holding Company} has allocated expenses amounting INR 117.99 (31 March 2023 - [NR 27.88) for core business advisory,
procurement and other support services, The same is booked as legal and professional expense under the head ‘other expenses'

Lease disclosures

The Company has taken office premises under cancellable operating lease agreement. The total lease rental recognised as an expense relating to low value and short term leases
amounts to (NR 0.06 (31 hMarch 2023 - [NR 0.06)

New standards and interpretations, not yet adopted
Ministry of corporate affairs (“ MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments 10 the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time
to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Ratio Analysis and its elemenis

Rautin In timese Numerator Denominator 31 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023 e chanpe in ratio Reasans fnr
. . s Cumenl rtio has increased due 1|
(Cwrrant Raiig I Linweg Tolal Coren Asteis Tatal Corrcol Liabilitics u4z 022 21% derrtate vl barrowings
Debr-eouity ratio has mproved duc ko)
Dicb-Equity Ralio In tmcs Toda| Bomrowings Todal Equity 117 (107 -156% decrease i borow ings and increaze
Iotal equity
Eamings before finance cost. | Flmanee costs paid + Priocipal chbl Service Wtcmgcrnlio ',mlr:d"fd
Dcbi Senvice Concrage Ratio In times deprocigtion. amanisaiion  [repoyments  of  long  em wu? 034 B0% m"‘ to propayment ¢f pancipal dunng
and 1ax bomowings ¢ year
Since the variance i3 less than 27%
Trode Reccirables tumor or mtip Lo times Revenue From operations Average Trade Receinables 1842 2426 % there 12 no requirement o dischose the
reastn
. . . N
i i Com of materials consumed + Sinez the arignes is less than 25%)
Trade parables wmover miio o vimes Other expenss Arcrage Trade Pavables 25 284 0% there is no requirement o disclose (e
: reason
Decreased due 10 locrease o reven
et copinal lumaver ralio In vinwes Revenue fiom operadions | Avcroge working capital @an {1.56} 7% ::"' operations di (0 impros cmem in
siness
Mel prolii mig improved duc I
et prodit ralie n% Loss alicr fax Revenue from operations 2T 95% F349% 30 ::'mtm in business activity during
& Yo
. . . Since the variance is less (han 23%)
Rewn on Capital emploved In*% i’::"‘g befoee inwcrest and E:f“‘::’::f_l%':l' Tanml?::g 4 65% 384 21% |hac:s me requirement w dischose thel
reasg

The Company has nol presented the [olkowing ratios due 1o te reasons given below:

{1} Imveniory borsoser ratio; Since the Company holds the invenlory olb inchiding Hquer mmd the proporticn of such i valyg is insignificont to tolol asseis

{2y Relum on investmests: Sinee Lhe Company mvaests surplus icmporary ﬁmds in ghor-kem bank dunosus and the income gencraied Trom i is insigoilicant wo wial rerveme

{3} Relurm on equity ratio; The Company has incurred et boss in cument year as well as previous vear and also has negative equity i the previeus vear. Therefore. "Relum on equib™ rlic cannol be meaningfully computed and hence has e non been disclased in
ihe finoncial stalcments

Gaing conctm

The Company bas incured o ool loss of TNR 33I 1% million during the ycar cnded 31 March 2024 and a5 of thar dae. the Compans ‘s tument liabilies excorded ils garrent osseis by INK 266 84 nillicn. Tho current labivics include conmaciual cash cutlows of
TR 338 10 million (gxchidlng fisture l imterest p duc within 12 mmths ofthe hianoc ahccd e

Based on fulwre business projeclions. (he Company expocis growlh in s and i L in coming periods resuliing in cnluanced cosh inflows rom ils operaling actisitics. The Compony belieses snch amiicipated imemally
gencraked Tunds [rom operolions in fulure along with its biquidity position a5 a1 1) March 2024 is a\aulnble n‘.'mlung undrwn ¢redil faciliy as ot 31 March 2024 and certoin other cuwrend asseis (financiol and non-financial) a5 o 31 March 2024 will enable it o
meel its finure knovm eblipations die in next year, in the ordinory course of business. Houwever, il a liquidiy need were 10 arise, the Company has aceess 1o requisite financiol and ¢ peranonal support fiom SAMHI Hoicls Limitcd (holding compony). which shoubd
enabbe i 1o mect its ongoing capital. operaling. and otber llgnidity requirermmnts. Morcover, the Compony will comtinue Lo consider +areus bormow ing oplions 10 masimize liquidiny and supplement cash requirements as necossary.

In view of the above, the Management and Board of Dircelors of the Company hove propared these financial staieenis oo a going concem batis

Other staturory inforomation

(i} The Compony docs o4 hove any Benami propeny. where any procecding beas been inrialed or pending againet the Conpamy Gor holding any Benam properts

(i} The Company daes not hae any mansachions with companics siruck: ofT wnder scotion 248 of Companics Act 2013

(i) The Cenmpamiy does ol havee any chorpes o muizlvelion nhich is vol w0 be regisiorcd with Regisirar ol Compenics (ROC) beyond the siaery period

fiv) The Company have not eaded or imvesied in Crvpio cumeacy or Vinnal Currenes dunng the linancial year

v} Mo funds hove boen advanced or boancd or invested deither (fom bomowed funds of share premium o ame othér sourtes or kind of finds) by the Compony 1o or in oy other person(s) of entity(ies), including Foreign envivics ¢ Imermediaries ™) wilk the
understanding, whether recerded in wrilmg or olberwise, that the Intermediary shall bend or invest in pany ienlificd by of on behalllof the Company (Ultimaie Benafictiries)

{4i) The Company has oot received any fund from amy paoty(s) (Funding Pany) with the undersianding that the Company shalt whether. direcuy of Indirectly lend or Invest in oher pérsans or enbilics wentified by ar en behalf' of we Company {*Ulimak:
Bencliciarics™) of provide any guaranice. securivy of the like on behallaf the Ullimane Bencfioarics

(vif) The Company has not cotcred imo any such gansgoiion which is nol recorded in the hooks of accounts (hat has been surmendered or dischasad as income during Lhe veor i the 1as asscssmenle wnder the Income Tas Act, 1961 (such 03, search or sunch or any
olher relevan provisions of the [ncame Tax Aol 1961

(vuii) The ritle deads of immavable prapeny dischosed in the Gnancial sialemenis are held in de nano of te Company.

(i) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in e naee of koans 1 promoiers. ditettors, KMPs and the rcloted partics {as defined under Companics Act, 2013) either soverally or jointly with any olbcr person that are repasable on demand or withoo
specitylng any terms or period of repoymen

(x) The Compoy has oot been deslarcd o wilfol defaulier by any bank o other kender (a3 defined under the Companies Aol 2013), in dance with the mudehoes gn wilfal defaul

{503 The Company has used the bomaw ings from bonks for e specific porpose for mbich it was nken

[} Thers hay been no revaluation of propeny. plant and cquipmen of iniongible asseis or bolh for e year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 Moreh 2023

{5in) The company has bormowings from banks oo the basis ol stoonin of corrend 3s3csts. Howover, the Company is not required 1o submit quarierky reture or staiements with banks during e current year

(v} The company has complicd with the nomber of Lavers prescribed nnder e Canpanics Act, 2013

{x1 ) The compury has oot entered intg my scheme of arrangement which has on accounting impact on curmend o presiows Mmancial vears

The notes from Mo | o Node 43 form an inkegral pan ol these Mancinl siiements
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